Fastern Contra Costa Transit Authotlty

Phone 925.754.6622 Fax 925.757.2530

801 Wilbur Avenue « Antioch, California 945009

TRI DELIA TRANSIT

Board of Directors Meeting Agenda

Wednesday December 14", 2016
4:00pm
ECCTA Boardroom
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509
Available online: www.trideltatransit.com

Please see the last page of this agenda for:

Public comment guidelines

s Agenda, staff report, and document availability
& Americans with Disabilities Act information

e Anticipated action by the Board of Directors

Call to Order; Chair Doug IIardcastle

a. Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

While puklic cormments are encouraged and taken very seriously, State law
prevents the Board of Directors from discussing items that are not on the
meeting agenda. If appropriate, staff will fellow up on public comments.
Please see Public Comment Guidelines on Page 3 of this agenda.

Public Comment

Chair’s Report: Chair Doug Hardcastle

Consent Calendar (ACTION ITEM): Minutes, Financial Report, and
Marketing Activities Report (see atfachment: tab #1)

a.  Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting of October 26, 2016
b. Financial Report

¢.  Marketing Activities Report
Requested Action: Approve items 5a, 5b, and 5¢

CEO’s Report: Jeanne Krieg

a.  Operations Report (see aifachment. tab #2)

2016 Board of Directors:
City of Antioch
Wade Harper
Mary Rocha**

City of Brentwood
Gene Clare
Barbara Guise

City-of Oakley
Doug Hardcastle*
Kevin Romick

City of Pittshurg
Ben Johnson
Pete Longmire

Contra Costa County
Federal Glover
Mary Piepho

Member-at-Large
Ken Gray

*  Chair: FY 2016-17
** Vice-chair: FY 2016-17
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7. ACTION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

a. ACTION ITEM: Fuel Hedging
(see aitachment: tab #3)
Requested Action: Adopt Resolution 161214a authorizing the CEQ to begin
engaging in fuel hedging for the purpose of stabilizing the cost of diesel fuel for
the agency over time.

b. ACTION ITEM: Fixed Route Bus Disposal
(see attachment: tab #4)
Requested Action: Adopt Resolution 161214b authorizing the dlsposal of
nineteen fixed route buses.

¢. ACTION ITEM: Maintenance of Shop Equipment
(see attachment. tab #5}
Requested Action: Adopt Resolution #161214¢ authorizing the CEO to execute
and deliver a five year contract for Shop Equipment Maintenance and As-Needed
Repairs to Walker’s Hydraulics, Inc.

d. ACTION ITEM: Transit Study Mission
Requested Action: Authorize the CEO to participate in the 2017 APTA
International Study Mission to study safety culture, state of good repair, and
innovative operations.

e. ACTION ITEM: Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 30, 2016
(see attachment: tab #6)
Requested Action: Adopt Resolution #161214d accepting the Independent
Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 30, 2016

8. Board of Directors Comments
Under this item, Directors are limited to providing information, asking clarifying
questions about matters not on the agenda, responding to public comment, referring
matters to staff, or requesting a report be made at another meeting.

9. Adjourn
Next Meeting: January 25%, 2017 — 4:00pm

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority Board of Directors
Meeting Agenda — December 14“’, 2016



Page 3 of3

Public Comment Guidelines:
* Persons requesting to address the ECCTA Board of Directors are requested to complete a Comment
Request form and submit it to the clerk. If possible, please submit the form prior to the start of the
meeting. At the appropriate time, the ECCTA chair will call on individuals to comment.

¢ During the public comment agenda item, the public is permitted to address the ECCTA Board of
Directors on items that are on the consent calendar or items not on the agenda. Individuals may also
make a request for future agenda items. No action or discussion may take place on any item not
appearing on the posted agenda.

o |f a person wishes to speak on a specific agenda item, the ECCTA chair will call on the individual when
the agenda item is being discussed by the Board of Directors.

* Persons addressing the ECCTA Board of Directors are requested to limit their remarks to three (3)

minutes unless an extension of time is granted by the chair, subject to approval of the ECCTA Board of
Directors.

Agenda, staff report, and document availability:

Copies of all staff reports and documents subject to disclosure that relate to each item of business
referred to on the agenda are available for public inspection the Friday before each regularly scheduled
Board of Director's meeting at Tri Delta Transit's front desk located at 801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch,
California. Any documents subject to disclosure that are provided to all, or a majority of all, of the
members of the Board regarding any item on this agenda after the agenda has been distributed will also
be made available for inspection at Tri Delta Transit's front desk at the above referenced address during

Americans with Disabilities Act Information: )

In compliance with the Americans with Disahilities Act, the meeting room is wheelchair accessible and
disabled parking is available in the Tri Delta Transit parking lot. If you are a person with a disability and
you need disability-related modifications or accommodations to participate in this meeting, please
contact the CEQ’s Office at (925} 754-6622 or fax {925) 757-2530. Notification 48 hours prior to the
meeting will enable Tri Delta Transit to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to this
meeting. {28 CFR 35.102-35, 104 ADA Title Ii} Please help us accommodate individuals with EI-MSC and
refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting. Please turn off any electronic paging device cr cell

A o e e
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Anticipated action by the Board of Directors: _
The Board of Directors may take action on any item on the agenda, which action may consist of the

recommended action, no action or a related action.
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Meeting Agenda — December 14th, 2016



TAB 1

Agenda Item 53, b, ¢
Consent Calendar {ACTION ITEM): Minutes, Financial Report and
Marketing Activities Report

Board of Directors Meeting

Wednesday December 14, 2016

ECCTA Boardroom
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509



EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Antioch - Brentwood - Pittsburg - Oakley and Contra Costa County

MINUTES
October 28, 2016
The Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (ECCTA) meeting was called to order in the
ECCTA Board Room, 801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, California by Chair Doug Hardcastle at
4:00 P.M.

ROLL CALL /CALL TO ORDER

PRESENT: Gene Clare (Brentwood); Nancy Parent, Alternate for Federal Glover
(Contra Costa County); Ken Gray (Member-at-Large); Barbara Guise
(Brentwood); Wade Harper* (Antioch), Ben Johnson (Pittsburg); Pete
Longmire (Pittsburg); Michael Daugelli, Alterate for Mary N. Piepho (Contra
Costa County); Kevin Romick (Oakley); Mary Rocha (Antioch/\ice Chair);

and Doug Hardcastle (Oakley/Chair)
*Arrived after Roll Call

ABSENT: None

STAFF: Jeanne Krieg, Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
Steve Ponte, Chief Operating Officer (COQ)
Ann Hutcheson, Director of Adminisfrative Services
Joe Chappelle, Executive Assistant
Ben Stock, Legal Counsel

OTHERS

PRESENT: Susan Hinson, First Transit
Gary Mitchell, First Transit
Hosie Pintily, First Transit

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

Director Clare led the Pledge of Allegiance.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Shirley Lefave, a Tri Delta Transit Dial-a-Ride customer, expressed concern with the 5 to
10-minute wait for calls to go through the system. She requested a separate phone line so
that when people finished their errands early there could be a separate line to address
- pick-ups to keep customers from long, sometimes two-hour waits.
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- CHAIR’S REPORT

Chair Hardcastle verified that the bus parked outside the facility building was one of the
new Gilligs.

CONSENT CALENDAR

On motion by Director Johnson, seconded by Director Guise, ECCTA Boardmembers
adopted the Consent Calendar, as shown, which carried by the following vote:

A. Minutes of the Board of Directors meeting of August 31, 2016
B. Financial Report .
C. Marketing Activities Report

AYES: Clare, Daugelli, Gray, Guise, Harper, Johnson, Longmire, Parent, Romick,
Rocha, Hardcastle
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER'S REPORT

A. Operations Report

Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) Jeanne Krieg reported that she had attended the American
Public Transportation Association (APTA) Annual Meeting in Los Angeles in September,
which had been a good and very busy conference. She also reported that she had
recently been reappointed to the California Transit Association's Federal Legislative
Committee, and with that group had gone to Washington, D.C. to meet with members of
the California delegation to discuss a number of issues, which she highlighted at this time,

In other matters, Ms. Krieg reported that no bids had been received for the fuel tank
maintenance IFD so staff would continue to use the current contractor; the work was less
than $10,000, although the process was necessary to prove that outreach would be
conducted. The first of the 20 Gillig buses had been delivered and was available for
viewing at this time. She described the differences between these buses and those last
purchased in 2013 in that there were two more cameras on the buses which had different
cooling fans, the AVL sign was built in, a stop request had been added, and there were
disk brakes instead of drum brakes. The buses were expected to be in service by mid-
November in that various pieces of equipment such as Clipper®, AVL, automatic
passenger counters, Smatt Drive, and Mobile Eye would have to be installed first. Once
the new buses were in service, all of the classic Phantoms would be retired. She
described the potential options for the use of some of the Phantoms such as a community
outreach bus or an emergency mobile command center.
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Ms. Krieg advised that the next step in the new technology included in the First Transit
contract was being installed. All paratransit operators would have a tablet to use for
manifest management and routing, which would cut down on radio traffic, reduce errors in
the field, and help make the paratransit system more efficient.

Ms. Krieg reported that Tom Harais, the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) had been analyzing
the possibility of using fuel hedging and would be presenting a possible plan at the
meeting in December.

Ms. Krieg explained that Antioch City staff had planned to change zoning for the IE)roper’cy
ECCTA had purchased to be used as a Park & Ride lot at Auto Center and 6% Street,
which would have disallowed ECCTA from building on the lot. A meeting with the City
Manager about the project as well as with the Planning Commission had resulted in the
announcement that the City would allow the Park & Ride to be built at that location. She
thanked those involved for making that happen, and reported that ECCTA’s consultant,
Mark Thomas, was working with the City to complete the traffic study and environmental
review of the property. Final plans would be presented to the City by the end of
November, and possible funding sources for construction were being identified.

Ms. Krieg reported that progress continued on the facility solar project in that system
design for the solar panel frame footings was being done, which was being reviewed by
the fire department, and would next be reviewed by the Antioch Planning Commission
prior to ECCTA publishing a request for bid. A request for bid would also be published for
the car charging stations that would be installed in the parking lot.

Ms. Krieg reminded Directors of the Gillig factory tour scheduled for Thursday, October 27
and noted that thus far Alternate Daugelli and Directors Johnson, and Gray would be
participating in the tour. With respect to operations, she explained that fixed route
ridership, like most other transit agencies, was still sluggish; paratransit ridership was
essentially flat; and because reporting had changed with respect to measuring on-time
performance and customer complaints comparisons to last year would be off all year.
Additionally, the split used for fixed route and paratransit had been changed so that while
the overall budget had not changed, the allocation had.

ACTION AND DISCUSSION ITEMS

A, Seafood Festival Shuttle

Ms. Krieg reported that years ago the Seafood Festival Shuttie in Pittsburg had been very
successful until the location of the Festival had been moved which had resulted in poor
ridership, and after being moved again the shuttle had again been requested, which had
been approved as long as there were a minimum of 4,000 riders. With a total of 2,956

riders this year, she stated the shuttle would not be run next year unless there was a
different determination from the Board.
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Director Johnson asked that the question of running the shuttle be continued to next year
to allow a determination of why there had been such a low ridership this year.

Ms. Krieg suggested that the close-in parking with the current site of the Seafood Festival
had negated the need for the shuttle, although Director Johnson suggested that given the
15,000 people who had aftended the Festival there would be a need for the shuttie, and he
reiterated his request that it be reconsidered next year along with the potential costs of
running the shuttle with a lower ridership.

B. Antioch Chamber of Commerce Membership

Ms. Krieg explained that in 2008 the Antioch Chamber of Commerce had formed a
Political Action Committee (PAC) to endorse and financially support candidates in
elections, and while the PAC was intended to be a separate organization from the
Chamber itself, ECCTA Boardmembers at that time had expressed concem maintaining
Tri Delta Transit's membership in the Chamber given those endorsements. With a new
manager, new Chamber, and a new way of doing business, in 2014 the Board had
authorized the CEO to rejoin the Antioch Chamber with the direction to advise the Board if
the PAC was reactivated. This year the Antioch Chamber Board of Directors had
endorsed a couple of candidates in local elections and the Chamber had advised her that
while the PAC had not been reactivated the Board had approved endorsements without
financial support.

Director Johnson verified with Ms. Krieg that ECCTA had memberships with the Pittsburg,
Brentwood, and Oakley Chambers and none of them endorsed candidates.

Director Harper commented that he had tried to talk Ms. Krieg into joining the Antioch
Chamber years ago with the idea that it was no longer involved in politics, but since that
Chamber was now endorsing candidates, and he was a candidate, he suggested it was
time to step back and reconsider.

Director Clare did not support the use of public funds in any way related to politics and
while no money was involved, he suggested endorsement was an in-kind contribution. He
recommended pulling out of the Antioch Chamber immediately as a result given that the
Chamber was involved in politics. If that changed in the future, the issue of membership
with the Antioch Chamber could be reconsidered.

Director Daugelli concurred that the Board should discontinue its relationship with the
Antioch Chamber given the issue related to endorsements.

On the discussion, it was noted that Candidates Night was not an endorsement.

Ms. Krieg reported that staff had called all Chambers of Commerce in the State and had
found that only Modesto and San Diego endorsed candidates.
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Vice Chair Rocha commented that endorsement by the Executive Board of the Chamber

was a clear violation, while a survey of members with respect to endorsement would be
different.

Director Gray agreed that the line had to be drawn and there was a need to withdraw from
the Antioch Chamber, but noted that he would abstain from a vote given that his wife was
a candidate.

Ms. Krieg verified that public doliars could not be used to support political candidates.

Director Romick suggested that support was not an in-kind contribution since it did not

have to be reported, although in some Chambers there were d|fferent levels of
membership. -

Director Clare suggested it might apply technically but the larger issue was the politics and
the perception it implied because ECCTA was a member of the Antioch Chamber. He
wanted to remain clear of any conflict of interest.

Director Guise suggested it was a gray area that could be interpreted in a number of ways
and agreed it was important to remain clear of the implications.

Director Longmire commented that the situation was ambiguous but given the ethics
training, he suggested the Board needed to avoid becoming entangled in the appearance
of any type of involvement. He suggested it was important for the ECCTA Board to
maintain its integrity and withdraw from the Antioch Chamber of Commerce.

‘When asked, Ms. Krieg verified that she had exchanged emails with the CEO of the
Chamber and had spoken to him on the phone and in person.

Director Guise suggested the Antioch Chamber might not be involved in endorsements in’
the future and the Board might be able to rejoin the Chamber in the future.

Director Johnson requested that a Istter be sent to each local Chamber of Commerce to
advise that the ECCTA Board of Directors would not be a member of any Chamber that
endorsed candidates.

On motion by Director Longmire, seconded by Director Clare, ECCTA Boardmembers
authorized the CEO to immediately withdraw from membership in the Antioch Chamber of
Commerce, carried by the following vote:

AYES: Clare, Daugelli, Guise, Harper, Johnson, Longmire, Parent, Romick, Rocha,
Hardcastle
NOES: None
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ABSTAIN:  Gray
ABSENT: None
C. Fixed Route Bus Purchase

Ms. Krieg advised that there was available money to replace the very old coaches that
would no longer be needed when the eBART Station opened in Antioch and Pittsburg, and
if ordered today the new buses would be available in 24 months. She sought adoption of

the resolution to authorize the CEQ to contract with Gillig to purchase five additional
buses.

On motion by Director Harper, seconded by Director Clare, ECCTA Boardmembers
adopted Resolution 161028a authorizing the CEO to execute and deliver a purchase order
to Gillig LLC, through County Connection RFP 2012-MA-02, for an amount not to exceed
$3,170,996, which includes a 10 percent contingency, for the purchase and delivery of five
40 foot low floor fixed route buses, carried by the following vote:

AYES: Clare, Daugelli, Gray, Guise, Harper, Johnson, Longmire, Parent, Romick,
_ Rocha, Hardcastle
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None
ABSENT: None

D. Appointment of ECCTA’s Civil Rights Officer

Ms. Krieg advised of the recommendation to designate her Executive Assistant Joe
Chappelle as ECCTA's Civil Rights Officer, to be responsible for the Title VI,
Environmental Justice (EJ), Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO), Disadvantaged
" Business Enterprises (DBE), and Limited English Proficiency (LEP) programs.

On motion by Director Clare, seconded by Director Harper, ECCTA Boardmembers
adopted Resolution 161026b acknowledging the appointment of Joseph Chappelle as the
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority Civil Rights Officer effective November 1, 2016,
carried by the following vote:

AYES: Clare, Daugelli, Gray, Guise, Harper, Johnson, Longmire, Parent, Romick,
Rocha, Hardcastle
NOES: None

ABSTAIN: . None
ABSENT: None

CLOSED SESSION: Adjourn to Closed Session

Chair Hardcastle adjourned into Closed Session at 4:42 P.M. for Conference with Legal

Counsel — Anticipated Litigation. Significant exposure to litigation pursuant to Government
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Code Section 54956.9(d)(2): (One Potential Case)

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION

Chair Hardcastle reconvened the meeting at 5.05 P.M.

Ben Stock, Legal Counsel, advised that there was no reportable action from the Closed
Session.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMENTS

Directors expressed best wishes to all for a Happy Thanksgiving Day.

Director Johnson repotted that there would be a 5K run in Pittsburg on October 29, when
everyone was welcome to walk or run.

Director Parent announced that Mr. Roberts would be performed at the Pittsburg
Community Theater the weekend of November 12, and if as well received as Fiddfer on
the Roof had been, it would be very good.

Director Gray advised that he had written up some of the highlights of the APTA Annual
Meeting in Los Angeles including the U.S./China competition as to how many buses they

could get on the street to lower emissions by 2025; and transportation alternatives such as
car sharing.

ADJOURNMENT

Chair Hardcastle adjourned the meeting of the Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority at
5:10 P.M. to December 14, 2016 at 4:00 P.M. in the ECCTA Administration Facility, 801
Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, California.

Respecifully submitted,

Anita L. Tucci-Smith
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TRI DELTA TRANSIT

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors

Meeting Date: December 14,2016
Agenda Item: Marketing/Communications Activities - Agenda Item 5¢

Lead Staff: Mike Furnary, Director of Marketing
Approved: Jeanne Krieg, Chief Executive Officer

1. Completed & Planned Marketing Activities-Nov/Dec 2016

1. Holiday Shopping Guide and Contest
Printed and delivered customer insert promoting bus service to major
shopping centers during the holiday season. Included promotional contest
element for a chance to win an XBOX One.

2. HD housing direct mail execution
Completed the second of two scheduled direct mail marketing efforts
targeting high density households in East County. Results of the promotion
will be available in January.

3. Web Site Redesign Launch
The launch of the revised web site is planned for the end of December. The
new web site will provide easier access to customer information including
service alerts, The new site also allows for simpler input of information.

4. Holiday Scavenger Hunt Promotion
Administering holiday-themed promotion: riders have an opportunity to win
free passes and Visa gift cards by locating prize boxes hidden at bus stops
and Ticket Connection locations. Clues will be provided daily via social media
Dec 12-23 as to the location of each box.

5. New Bus Preparation _
Completed preparation of new buses for revenue service.

6. Paratransit Survey
A comprehensive survey of current paratransit customers was completed.
The results are being analyzed and will be used to provide input into
improving service.

7. Future System Redesign Planning
Development of new materials for future system redesign continued
including new system maps and individual route maps needed for future
schedules and communications.

8. Class Pass/Facility Tour
One class pass trip was scheduled and provided.

9. Ongoing marketing programs
- Welcome Pack mailing

Agenda Item #5¢
Fastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Board of Directors Meeting
December 1472016



-2 for 1 tickets on Route 300 (subsidized by 511 Contra Costa)
- Take One on-board newsletter
- Gatekeeper quarterly newsletter

IL Planned Marketing/Communications Activities

QRN W

New schedule preparation: design & print in February 2017
Advertising trade agreements for 2017

Try Transit Challenge (511 Contra Costa)

Web site redesign : _

LMC table-top event

Advertising sales report for 2016

Local employer New Employee Welcome Pack project
Farebox resolution communication project

Agenda Item #5¢
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Board of Directors Meeting
December 142016



TAB 2

Agenda ltem 6a
CEO’s REPORT: Operations Report

Board of Directors Meeting

Wednesday December 14, 2016

ECCTA Boardroom
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509



Chief Executive Officer’s Report
November - December 2016
B
Highlights:

TRI DELTA TRANSIT

ECCTA Executive
Team

Jeanne Krieg
Chief Executive Officer

Steve Ponte
Chief Operating Officer

Tom Harais
Chief Financial Officer

Ann Hutcheson
Director of
Administrative Services

Kevin Moody
Director of
Maintenance

Mike Furnary
Director of Marketing

Susan Hinson
First Transit
Director of Operations

¢ ECCTA’s computer disaster recovery plan was updated.

+ An extensive survey of paratransit customers was conducted. Results are being
analyzed and will be presented in January.

» Many marketing promotions were implemented including Holiday Shopper,
High Density Housing Free Pass, and Holiday Scavenger Hunt,

e ECCTA’s Emergency Operations Center was activated to conduct a functional
exercise with Contra Costa County, local police departments, PG&E, first
responders, and other entities,

e 1 was appointed to chair APTA’s Awards Committee.

+ All twenty 2016 Gillig low floor buses are in service. .

» Tablets were installed on all paratransit vehicles per the new contract with First
Transit, Drivers have better access to manifests, maps, and other important
tools.

» T'wo new employees began working at Tri Delta Transit: Receiving Clerk Mike
Gonsalves and Mechanic Manue! Contreras.

¢ An RFB was published for the electric charging stations,

¢ The Clipper small operators subgroup, which includes all small operators in the
nine county Bay Area, continues to meet on a regular basis.

» The advisory team for the Contra Costa Mobility Management project
continues to meet.

e The UC Berkeley PATH Integrated Dynamic Transit Operations system
demonstration project that will use Tri Delta Transit as the subject continued.
CCTA is overseeing the Caltrans-funded project that will demonstrate Transit
Connect, Dynamic Dispatch, and Dynamic Rideshare in east county.

Pending:

> Facility Solar System

» PG&E electric extension

» Electric bus procurement

» Website update

» Service to Brentwood LMC campus (August 2018)
» Next generation of Clipper (2019)

» Service to eBART stations in Pittsburg and Antioch (2017)
» FTA’s Safety Program

» A&E: Antioch Park & Ride lot (in process)

» CCTA Express Bus Study (update to the 2001 study)
» Oakley Park & Ride lot construction

» BART Parking & Connectivity Committee

1 » Paratransit subcommittee

» Radio spectrum sale contract
» Federal grants

Agenda Item #on
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Board qf Directors Mecting
December 14, 2016




TRI DELTA TRANSIT
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Agenda ftem #6a
Eastem Conira Costa Transit Authority
Board of Diracior's Meefing
December 14, 2016
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS BY SERVICE

YTD COMPARISON

16/178 |-

Actual Budget Actual % A
11712 | 12718 | 1314 | 14/5 | 15/16 16/17 %% A Nov-16 | Nov-16 °
DIAL-A-RIDE
PASSENGERS :

Total BAR Trips Provided 130,619 128,899 131,476 133,769 131,917 132,000 0% - 54,680 54,899 0%
Average Weekday Ridership 481 470 471 487 489 487 0%]. 489 4984 1%
Average Sat Ridarship 1086 140 180 153 118 124 5% 124 102 -17%
Average Sun/Hol Ridership 71 72 68 63 49 51 3%} B 44 47 %
Average Passengers/Hour (wkdys DAR Only} 2.1 2.1 2.3 2.4 2.5 2.5 2%]| 2.6 2.8 8%

CUSTOMER SERVICE e
Ride Rofusals / Day C.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 0%l - 0.0 0.0 0%
Customor Complalnts 0.183% 0.097% 0.071% 0.103% 0.114% 0.109% ~5%| 0.112% 0.337%| 202%
On Time Performance 85% 87% 89% 87% B5% 90% 6% - 86% 85% 1%

MAINTENANCE M
Gallons of Fuel Gonsumed 116,382 139,678 145,043 138,528 135,800 142,880 5%} 57,318 54,191 -5%
Miles Between Preventable Accldents 808,467 328,002 244,390 162,293 159,143 200,000 26%] 98,939 313,732 217%
Mies Between Road calls 56,154 109,568 51,108 139,113 190,963 100,000 0% 79,153 313,732 296%

COST RATIOS |
|Farebox Recovery Ratio 11% 11% 10% 10% 0% 10% %] : 11% 12% 10%
$iGal Fuel i} 3.84 | $ 3.81,8% 367 | § 3.08 | § 259 |3 275 5%~ ] § 289 % 2.32 -20%
Operating Cost/Passenger $ 30,58 | $ 33.22 | § 35,26 3418 [ § 34411 % 35.46 3%l [ 3550 | & 27.58 -22%
Operating Cost/Revenue Hour § 6434 | % 63,52 | § 68.75 59.811 8% 7226 | § 74.35 3% 8 7474 | & £6.60 -11%
Operating Cost/Revenue Mile $ 522 1% 536 % 576 | § 574 | $ 585 1% 5.98 2% § 587 | % 4,78 -20%
FIXED ROUTE

PASSENGERS o
Total FR Trips Provided 2431768 | 2,740,834 | 2,832,264 | 2,806,028 | 2,574,864 | 2,613,485 %) 1137047 [ 1023824 | -10%
Average Waekday Ridership 8,594 9,616 9,930 9,794 8,999 9,113 %] 9,522 8,626 -9%
Avarage Sat Ridership 2,763 3,232 3,484 3,498 3,061 3,144 3% 3,377 2,883 -15%
Average Sun/Hol Ridership 2,087 2,788 2,682 2,787 2,501 2,537 1% ! 2,709 2344 -13%
Average PassengersiHour 15.9 17,7 9.0 19.2 17.8 17.9 1% . 19.0 17.2 -9%

CUSTOMER SERVICE -
Customer Gomplaints 0.023% 0.012% 0.009% 0.009% 0.009% 0.009% 0% 0,008% 0.027%| 189%
On Time Performance 86% 86% 92% 92% 92% 90% 2% 20% 79% ~12%

MAINTENANCE e
Galtons of Fuel Consumed 636,276 582,702 603,013 600,072 606,378 597,267 -2%f ._ 253,600 253,883 0%
Miles Betwean Preventable Accldents 120,644 65,392 110,754 98,066 97,469 100,000 3%] - 125,804 102,040 -18%
Miles Betwasn Road calls 32,481 42,844 67,684 41,553 27,680 50,000 81% 40,193 17,007 -58%

COST RATIOS

Farohox Racovery Ratio 16% 18% 18% 18% 18% 18%|  -10% 18% 7% -9%
$/Gal Fuel 3 3.62 | % 3.95 | 8% 348 | § 2771 % 1.98 | % 2.00 2% 3 214 | & 1.96 -8%
Qperating CostiPassenger $ 6.60 | 68.01 1% 558 | % 5541% 598813 6.18 3% § 563 |5 6.66 18%
Operating CostiRevenue Hour $ 10505)% 10853 |% 110578 (% 0836 (% 10633 |% 110.84 T $ 10686 | % 114.52 7%
|Operating Cost/Revenua Mile $ 748 % 7.88 | & 77113 762§ 7.49 | $ 7.83 5% 1 % 75318 8.19 a%

Zastern Conlra Cosia Transit Aufhority

Agenda Hem itGa

Board of Diractor's Meeting
December i4, 2016
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TRI DELTA TRANSIT
COMPARATIVE YTD FR RIDERSHIP BY ROUTE

TOTAL PASSENGER TRIPS

YTD COMPARISON

ROUTE 1112 | %chg 12/13 % Chyg 13114 | %chg 14115 % Ghyg 15M6 [%ch}- | Nov-15 Nov-16 | %cha
200 37,682 4% 55,322 [ 4% 55,914 1% 54,167 -3% 48,866 | -10%| 21,028 19,008 5%
201 110,680 5% 119,077 8% 124,289 4% 112,116 | -10% 116,301 4% 47,803 49,629 4%
300 302,067 4% 280,313 4% 328,582 | 13% 363,802 8% 340,127 A% 146,535 148,733 2%
379 10,235 | -16% 15,232 | 49% 6,759 | -56% 3223 | -52% 3650 | 14%| - 1,835 857 0%
380 584,779 3% 580,981 16% 682,650 0%| 666,704 2% 506,012 9% 266,603 230,568 | -10%
383 34,210 | 263% 35,021 2% 32,073 | 8% 30,200 8% 25,830 | -14%| 10,867 9,775 | -10%
384 26,201 2% 8257 | 69% N/AL N/A WA A NA[ NA N/A NIA] — NiA
335 36,481 1% 51388 | 68% 70574 | 16% 68,013 A% 56,045 3%[ 29,810 24,383 | -18%
388 3042 | -35% 2,172 | -290% 1,902 | -12% 1583 | 7% 1,507 5%]- 571 496 | 13%
387 212,731 % 262,396 | 23% 264,036 1%| 257,944 2% 233,185 [ 10%]|: 102,178 88,523 | -13%
358 320,981 3% 366,041 14% 400,190 o%| 370,128 -8% 327,585 [ -11%) - 147 808 126,596 | -14%
389 46,723 3% 53,265 | 14% 53,068 0% 51,480 3% 45,836 | -11%[.- 20799 17,094 | -18%
390 52,650 7% 68,564 | 30% 72,054 5% 71,211 1% 70,022 2%]+ 29,903 29,288 0%
391 346,080 4% 370,500 7% 386,640 4% 402,579 4% 360,256 | -11%]%- 160,796 139,398 [ 13%
Dimes a Ride 11,328 | -11% NAA] A NA| NiA NA] A NA[ il N7A N/A NIA
Delta Express (Hac) 11,831 | -36% NA] WA nNA[ TN N/A] NIA nal N7A N/A NIA
Shuttles 9,446 3% 4941 | -a8% 3,370 | -32% 5,375 | 59% 13410 | 149%|- - 4,637 2956 | -36%
392 112,330 5% 133,568 | 19% 142,284 7% 142,650 0% 124708 1 13| - 57,479 50,479 | 2%
393 111,697 7% 135181 | 21% 133,078 | 2% 141,281 6% 126,653 | -10%}.: 59,088 51614 | 12%
394 50,614 8% 71657 | 41% 84,004 | 0% 63,087 -3% 53,894 | -15%|" . 24,400 21,487 | -12%
395 NiA|  Nia 6,187 | 100% 9,497 | 100% 10,485 | 100% 10,968 | 100% 5,817 3,170 | -46%
Total Fixed Route 2,431,768 3%| 2,740,834 | 13%] 2,832,264 2,806,029 -1%| 2,574,865 -5%) 1,137,047 | 1,023,824 [ -i0%

AVERAGE PASSENGERS PER REVENUE HOUR

ROUTE YTD COMPARISON
11412 % Chg 12113 % Chy 1314 % Ghg 14115 % Chg 1516 Nov-15 Nov-168 | %chg
200 10,3 3% 12,6 | 22% 125 1% 12.6 1% 11.5 12.0 10.8 | -10%
201 19.7 3% 17.8 [ -10% 178 1% 17.0 5% 16.1 17.6 146 [ -17%
300 15.8 4% 15.8 0% 188 | 18% 203 10% 19.6 20,2 20.7 3%
379 9.8 | -26% 10.7 9% 1681 57% 26.5 | 57% 30,6 39.5 19.0 | -52%
380 174 5% 202 | 16% 20.6 2% 202 2% 18.7 19.9 18.3 8%
383 87| 9% 10.2 5% 128 | 23% 13.0 3% 11.6 11.7 10.9 i%
334 10.2 % 14.6 [ 43% NIA] NIA NIA] MIA NFA| Al N/A N/A NEA
385 11.1 % 11.9 7% 12.9 8% 12.3 4% 114 -a%| 12.3 102 | A%
386 3.0 | -36% 36 % 63| 7% 6.3 1% 56 5% 6.3 56 | -10%
387 19.6 | 1% 228 | 6% 23.7 4% 23.3 2% 2171 7% 22.9 21,1 8%
388 15.5 3% 17.1 10% 16.2 7% 17.4 5% 162 -7%|: 17.6 154 | 3%
388 13.8 -8% 13.4 A% 14.4 5% 15.4 7% 144 -8%|" 15.8 132 | 7%
390 10.7 9% 186 | 73% 208 2% 215 3% 21.4 %] 22,0 231 5%
391 187 1% 19.6 5% 20.5 4% 21.9 7% 19.7 | 10%|. 21.3 187 | -12%
Dimes a Ride 10.9 | 35% nA[ T Nia WA NIA WA NrA NIA[ Nral NIA NIA A
Delta Express {Hac) 81| -10% Al TN NA| NA NA|  NA NIA[  Nial: N/A N/A[ N/A
Shuttles NiAl  NiA AL 6.4 N/A 30.7 | @83% 23.6 | 23uf 24.8 18.4 0%
302 152 1% 761 16% 19.1 9% 18.9 1% 16.7 | -12%] " 18.1 156 | -14%
303 16.4 5% i7.5 7% 17.5 C% 18.7 7% 16.8 | -jonl 18.4 181 | -12%
394 1.7 9% 15.0 | 28% 170 13% 16.9 7% 139 | -13%| . 14.7 13.5 8%
3956 NA] WA 12.0 NiA 16.2 NiA 16.4 1% 17.1 s%) 21,3 117 | -45%
Taotal Fixed Route 15.9 5% 17.7 [ 12% 19,0 7% 19.2 1% 17.8 -7%]. 19,0 17.2 9%

Agenda ftet fi6a

Castorn Contra Costa Transit Authonity

Board of Director's Meeting
December 14, 2016
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TAB 3

Agenda ltem 7a
ACTION ITEM: Fuel Hedging

Resolution 161214a

Board of Directors Meeting

Wednesday December 14, 2016

ECCTA Boardroom
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509



Tri Delta Transit

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors

Meeting Date: December 14, 2016

Agenda Item: Item 7a, Authorization to Implement a Fuel Hedging Program
Lead Staff: Tom Harais, Chief Financial Officer

Approved: Jeanne Krieg, Chief Executive Officer

Background

The table on the next page shows the comparative component costs of line items for
fixed route service at ECCTA. The amounts shown are in $thousands except for the
average price per gallon for fuel (exclusively diesel for FR service) which is
denominated in dollars.

Fuel is the third largest cost component of our service. And, it is one of the most
variable. In the eight years worth of data above, diesel fuel cost has varied by 87%!
This volatility makes planning for this item difficult and unreliable.

We create an annual budget based on the then current fuel price we are paying and
allowing for a substantive price increase during the year. We do this to avoid the
effects of any unfavorable fluctuations above budget in diesel fuel prices during the
budget year and the impact that could have on our planned operations. While this
avoids material under budgeting and, for the last two or three years has provided
substantial favorable variances, there remains the possibility that fuel prices could
spike rapidly upward ahead of budget and force us to make cuts during the year
elsewhere or draw from our reserves to maintain planned service levels. Even if fuel
prices fall below budgeted rates, we have unnecessarily tied up precious operating
funding within our plan that would be otherwise available for use elsewhere.

Agenda ltem 7a
Eastem Contra Costa Transit Authority
Board of Directors Meeting
December 14, 2016
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Proposal

We cannot control the price of fuel or the relative volatility that the fuel market represents.
However, we can better plan for a price we will pay and relieve some of the strain that such price .
fluctuations might impose on our planning and operations.

We can do this by “hedging”, the buying and selling fuel contracts at a forward price in advance
of our needs, This is not to be confused with investing, speculating or gambling, This is a
planning tool. Our futures contracts would be as likely to lose money as to make money. But, our
actual fuel purchases will move inversely proportional to the price of the contracts, thus offsetiing
fuel price variances such that we can plan on a more stabilized overall cost for our diesel fuel.

Consumer hedging is an insurance policy to maintain our overall fuel costs within a narrower
range into the future than allowed by simple, open market procurements. It’s a way of smoothing
over the volatility of diesel fuel prices when we actually procure diesel fuel. It only requires tying
up a small amount of our cash in advance and paying a small advisory fee for an expert opinion to
accomplish this.

This is a common practice of producers in various commodities markets to ensure the future price
they receive for their product so that they can better plan and operate their endeavors. Southwest
Airlines has engaged in fuel price hedging for years which has helped to make them the most
profitable airline. There are other public transit bus operators that are hedging today.

We lack the necessary expertise within our staff for such trading, So, we have worked with Jeff
Lemunyon the principal at Linwood Capital for several years in an effort to model a hedging
strategy that might be beneficial for ECCTA.

We have him here today to make a formal proposal and a process for ECCTA to use. Mr.
Lemunyun is a recognized professional in this field and has solid references. We ask that you
listen to his presentation and then authorize staff to engage his services and begin hedging using
diesel fuel futures contracts to help us better plan for fuel pricing in our fixed route service.

We are not planning to use futures contracts for unleaded gasoline, the fuel of our paratransit fleet,
because the volume is too small. (diesel = 600,000 gallons per year, gasoline = 150,000 gallons
per year).

Requested Action

At this time, we ask the board to approve Resolution 161214a allowing staff to begin hedging
forward costs for diesel fuel as we head into a new year.

Agenda ltem 7a
Eastemn Contra Costa Transit Authority
Board of Directors Meeting
December 14, 2016



DELTA TRANSIT

Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
801 Wilbur Avenue « Antioch, California 94509
Phone 925.754.6622 Fax 925.757.2530

RESOLUTION #161214a

Resolution 161214a adopts a Statement of Policy & Strategy for Fuel Hedging and
authorizes the CEQ to begin engflgmg in fuel hedgmg for the purpose of stabilizing the cost
of diesel fuel for the agency over time.

WHEREAS, Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority wishes to engage in the purchase of
forward fuel commodities contracts as a planning tool to stabilize fluctuating fuel prices; and

WHEREAS, sound policy for engaging in commodities contracts requires that ECCTA adopt a
Strategy for Fuel Hedging and Statement of Policy; and,

WHEREAS, sound policy for engaging in commodities trading requires prbfessional advice
outside of the ECCTA;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Eastern Contra
Costa Transit Authority to adopt resolution #1612 14a approving the adoption of the Statement of
Policy & Strategy for Fuel Hedging; authorizing the CEO to open a commodities trading account
with a suitable broker for the purpose of buying and selling fuel contracts; and, authorizing the
CEO or her designee to enter into an advisory contract with Linwood Capital, LLC to advise
ECCTA on the timing and execution of such contracts.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 14" day of December 2016, by the following votes:

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Doug Hardcastle, Chair Jeanne Krieg, CEO

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTENTIONS:
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Agenda Item 7b
ACTION ITEM: Fixed Route Bus Disposal

Resolution 161214b

Board of Directors Meeting

Wednesday December 14, 2016
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801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509



Tri Delta Transit

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors

Meeting Date: December 14, 2016

Agenda Item: Fixed Route Bus Disposal - Agenda Item #7b

Lead Staff: Ann Hutcheson, Director of Administrative Services
Approved: Jeanne Krieg, Chief Executive Officer %/
Background

e ECCTA has twenty fixed route buses that have reached the end of their useful life.

o ECCTA plans to keep one of these buses to use for Community Outreach to
promote public transit.

e ECCTA recently acquired twenty new low floor Gillig buses which are now in
service in place of the retiring buses.

Staff Recommendation
Sell nineteen retired fixed route buses to the highest legally qualified buyer(s). The
award for these buses will be made either separately or as one award based on what
is most advantageous to ECCTA.

Recommendation
Adopt Resolution #161214b authorizing the disposal of nineteen tixed route buses.

Agenda Item #7b
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Board of Directors Meeting
December 14", 2016



/ Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
y 801 Wilbur Avenue » Antioch, California 94509

Phone 925.754.6622 Fax 925.757.2530

RESOLUTION #161214b
FIXED ROUTE BUS DISPOSAL

Resolution #161214b authorizes the disposal of nineteen fixed route buses.

WI-IEREAS EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY (ECCTA) has nineteen Gillig
fixed route buses that have 1eached the end of their useful life; and

WHEREAS, Eastern Contra Costa County Transit Authority (ECCTA) desires to obtain the authority to
sell said buses to any legally qualified interested member of the public pursuant {o the authority conferred
by its Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Eastern Contra Costa
Transit Authority to adopt resolution #161214b authorizing staff to conduct a sale of said buses in
accordance with the following provisions:

A. The sale of the nineteen buses shall be made as a group or individually for cash payable by
the highest legally qualified bidder. This may be at a public auction or through public
advertising,

B. The award for the sale of the buses will be made either separately or as one award based on

what is most advantageous io ECCTA.

C. Payment shall be made by the successful bidder(s) in the form of a certified or cashier’s
check made payable to ECCTA, and each purchaser shall forthwith take all steps which are
necessary in order to transfer title and registration to each purchased bus to the purchaser, and
each purchaser shall further be responsible for paying, in addition to the purchase price, any
and all sales or use taxes which may be required by the Department of Motor Vehicles in
order to transfer title and ownership of each bus to its buyer.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 14th day of December 2016, by the following votes:

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Doug Hardcastle, Chair Jeanne Krieg, CEQ

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTENTIONS:;



"TAB5

Agenda Item 7c
ACTION ITEM: Facility Shop Equipment Maintenance and
As-Needed Repairs

Resolution 161214c

Board of Directors Meeting

Wednesday December 14, 2016

ECCTA Boardroom
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509



Tri Delta Transit

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors

Meeting Date: December 14, 2016

Agenda Item: Shop Equipment Maintenance Contract --Agenda Item #7¢
Lead Staff: Ann FHutcheson, Director of Administrative Services
Approved:- Jeanne Krieg, Chief Executive Officer 3/

Background

ECCTA is currently using the original equipment installer to perform
maintenance and repairs on the shop equipment. Since there are no longer
warranties on this equipment, it is necessary to offer this contract opportunity to

_ all vendors.

Process

e October 3, 2016, IFB # 2016-003: Facility Shop Equipment Maintenance
and As-Needed Repairs was mailed to 6 firms, publicly advertised, and
posted on ECCTA’s web site. ' |

* October 18, 2016: One firm attended a pre-bid meeting.

e November 28, 2016: ECCTA received bids from two firms.

After reviewing the bid documents, one bid was rejected for being non-
responsive to the bid requirements. The rejected bidder filed a protest and, if the
protest process is completed as scheduled by December 13, 2016, the Board of
Directors can make a contract award to the recommended bidder.,

Staff Recommendation

Pending the finalization of the bid award process, ECCTA staff recommends that
Facility Shop Maintenance and As-Needed Repairs contract be awarded to
Walker’s Hydraulics Inc, the most responsive and responsible bidder, for
$16,156 for year one.

Recommendation
Adopt Resolution #161214¢ authorizing the CEO to execute and deliver a five
year contract for Shop Equipment Maintenance to Walker’s Hydraulics Inc. for

$16,156 for year one with a San Francisco Bay Area CPI price increase allowed
for years two through five.

Agenda ltem #7b
Eastern Conlra Costa Transit Authorify
Board of Directors Meeting
December 14", 2016



Phone 925.754.6622 Fax 925.757.2530

/ \ Eéstern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Ny 507 Wilbur Avenue ¢ Antiach, California 94509
4
AN

RESOLUTION #161214c¢
AUTHORIZATION FOR AWARD OF CONTRACT FOR SHOP EQUIPMENT
MAINTENANCE AND AS-NEEDED REPAIRS

Resolution #161214¢ authorizes the CEO to execute and .deliver a five year contract for
Shop Equipment Maintenance and As-Needed Repairs to Walker’s Hydraulies, Inc.

WHEREAS, on October 3, 2016, ECCTA published an Invitation for Bid (IFB) #2016-003 for
Shop Equipment Maintenance and As-Needed Repairs; and

WHEREAS, the process followed all requirements established by ECCTA Purchasing Policies;
and

WHEREAS, Walker’s Hydraulics, Ine. is the recommendation of ECCTA staff as the most

responsive and responsible bidder.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED AS FOLLOWS:

1. ECCTA does herebjf award a five year contract for Shop Equipment Maintenance and
As-Needed Repairs to Walker’s Iydraulics, Inc. at its bid price of $16,156 for year one
with a San Francisco Bay Area CPI price inicrease allowed for years two through five.

2. BCCTA hereby grants the CEO the authorization to execute and deliver a contract to
Walker’s Hydraulics, Inc,

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 14" day of December 2016, by the following votes:

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Doug Hardcastle, Chair Jeanne Krieg, CHO

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTENTIONS:

1



TAB 6

Agenda ltem 7d
ACTION ITEM: Study Mission

Board of Directors Meeting

Wednesday December 14, 2016

ECCTA Boardroom
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509



TRI DELTA TRANSIT

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors

Meeting Date: December 14, 2016

Agenda ltem: Transit Study Mission
Agenda ltem 7d

Lead Staff: Jeanne Krieg, Chief Executive Officer

Background

Since 2000, as part of their International Program, the American Public Transportation
Association (APTA) periodically organizes a study mission to travel to other countries to
learn how topics of current interest are approached by other countries and cultures with
the goal to bring back ideas that can be applied in the United States. Study topics have
ranged from finance, fare collection, light rail, operations, and maintenance.

APTA invites a select group of members to take part in the study missions and has
invited me to participate in the 2017 study mission focusing on safety culture, state of
good repair, and innovative operations in Hong Kong, Singapore, and Tokyo. The study
mission is designed to give participants an opportunity to explore strategies in three
countries that have continued to stay on the cutting edge of public transportation
innovations. The participants in the mission will meet in Hong Kong on March 29, 2017,
and conclude their program in Tokyo on April 7,2017.

Twenty-five individuals are selected to participate. I was invited because of my work on
TRACS, the Department of Transportation’s Transit Advisory Committee for Safety,

which advises the Secretary of Transportation and the FTA Administrator on matters of
safety.

The Study Mission
This study mission will be a unique learning opportunity that promotes information-
sharing and education for participating members. Participants will learn best practices

Agenda Item #7d
Eastemn Contra Costa Transit Authonty
Board of Directors Meeting
December 14, 2016



and innovative techniques to use as we implement programs to address FTA’s new SMS
and Asset Management requirements. The study mission will consist of guided site visits,
in-depth stakeholder round tables with top executives, and several debriefing sessions.

The study mission will start in Hong Kong with a focus on building a robust safety
management system and taking a risk management approach to planning and operations.
Participants will get an insight into innovative solutions for maintaining, rebuilding, and
expanding transit systems. Next, the group will travel to Singapore to study a high-
performance safety culture in planning and maintenance, fully autonomous rail
operations, and integrated customer service technology for bus and rail. The mission will
continue on to Tokyo to view world class maintenance and operations centers for metro,
commuter and high-speed rail as well as station management. Participants will ride the
Shinkansen to visit top training facilities for the Japanese public transportation work
force and will explore Japan’s largest bus depot.

The cost to ECCTA, which includes all travel, hotels, fransfers, and meals will be
approximately $13,000. There is adequate funding in the budget to cover this expense.

Requested Action

Authorize the CEO to participate in the 2017 APTA International Study Mission to study
safety culture, state of good repair, and innovative operations.

Agenda ftem #7d
Eastem Contra Costa Transit Authority
Board of Directors Mesting
December 14, 2016

® Page 2
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Agenda ltem 7e
ACTION ITEM: Independent Auditor’s Report

Resolution 161214d

Board of Directors Meeting

Wednesdéy December 14, 2016

ECCTA Boardroom
801 Wilbur Avenue, Antioch, CA 94509



Tri Delta Transit

Staff Report to ECCTA Board of Directors

Meeting Date: December 14, 2016

Agenda Item: Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 30, 2016
Agenda ltem 7e

Lead Staff: Tom Harais, Chief Financial Officer

Approved: Jeanne Krieg, Chief Executive Officer ¥

Background

ECCTA is required to have an annual certified fiscal audit conducted by an outside
independent firm.

Process

Per the contract between ECCTA and Maze & Associates, an audit of the fiscal year
ending June 30, 2016 was conducted.

Results

The Authority’s financial statements were found to fairly present the financial condition
of the Authority in accordance with GAAP standards.

There were no material findings or questioned costs.
The Authority was found to be compliant with the requirements of OMB circular A-133,

and the regulations regarding expenditures funded with Transportation Development Act

and the Public Transportation, Modernization of Service and Enhancement Account
funds.

Requested Action

Adopt Resolution #161214d accepting the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year
ended June 30, 2016.

Attached
e Proposed Resolution
e Independent Auditor’s Report

Agenda Item 7e
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Board of Directors Meeting
December 14, 2016



801 Wilbur Avenue + Antioch, California 94509
Phone 925.754.6622 Fax 925.757.2530

//\\ TRI DELTA TRANSIT

RESOLUTION #161214d
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Resolution 161214d accepts the EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 30, 2016.

WHEREAS, ECCTA is required by PUC 99245 to have an annual certified fiscal audit
conducted by an outside entity; and

WHEREAS, the independent audit performed was designed to express an opinion on the FY
2016 financial statements and address current statutory and regulatory requirements in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; and

WHEREAS, the Independent Auditor’s Report for the year ended June 30, 2016 shows no
significant issues.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Board of Directors of the Eastern Contra
Costa Transit Authority to adopt resolution #161214d acceptlng the Independent Auditor’s
Report,

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 14" day of December 2016, by the following votes:

EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY

Doug Hardcastle, Chair Jeanne Krieg, CEO

AYES:

NOES:
ABSENT:
ABSTENTIONS:

i
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors of the
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Antioch, California

Report on Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of Eastern Conira Costa Transit Authority
(Authority) as of and for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of
Contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and mainfenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether due fo frand or
error. '

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our andits. We conducted
our andits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Govermment Auditing Stemdards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or exror. In making
those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Authority’s preparation and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s
internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

1 925.930.0902
Accountancy Gorporation F 925.930.0135

3478 Buskirk Avenue, Sulte 216 1
Ploasant Hill, CA 94523

E maze@mazsassociates.com
w mazeassociates.com
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Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects ihe financial
position of the Authority as of June 30, 2016 and 2015, and changes in financial position and cash flows for
the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America,

Other Matters
Reguired Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted: in the United States of America require that Management’s
Discussion and Analysis be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information,
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 28,
2016, on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, confracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Pleasant Hill, California
November 28, 2016



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Introduction

This discussion and analysis of the Easiern Contra Costa Transit Authority's financial performance
provides an overview of the Authority’s financial activities for Fiscal Year 2016 including comparisons to
prior fiscal year. This information should be considered in conjunction with the statements and notes
contained in the Financlal Section.

Overview of the Financial Statements

The Financial Section of this report presents the Authority’s financial statements including the basic
financial statements and the notes to those financial statements. !t also includes the Independent
Auditor’s Report on those financial statementis as well as certain grant activities.

Basic Financial Statements

The Statement of Net Position presents information about the assets and lizbilities and the difference
between the two as net position. The change in net position over time can indicate whether the
Authority’s financial position is improving or deteriorating.

The Statements of Revenues, Fxpenses and Changes in Net Position indicates how net position has
changed during the fiscal year as well as compares aperating revenues and operating expenses betwean
the current and prior fiscal year. The operating revenues and expenses shown here are the financial
activities of the Authority related to the Authority’s mission of providing public transportation services
in Eastern Contra Costa County. The revenues and expenses reported include fares and advertising
revenues along with the cost of passenger services, administration of those services, services that have
been contracted out and the depreciation of fixed assets. All other revenues and expenses not included
within these categories are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

The Statement of Cash Flows reparts the inflow and outflow of cash at the Authority. Such activity is
classified into four major components:

* Cash flows from operating activities including transactions reported as components of operating
income in the statement of revenues, expenses and changes in net position.

= Cash flows from investing activities include interest and similar returns on funds invested while -
held by the Authority. ‘

s Cash flows from non-capital financing activities includes operating grant funding received as well
as operating payments from third parties and non-operating items. -

s Cosh flows from capital and related financing activities come from the procurement of capttal
assets and the proceeds of capital grants. : '




Notes to the Financial Statements

Immediately following the basic financial statements are notes intended to provide additional
information that is essential for the reader to gain a full understanding of the information provided
within the financial statements.

Analysis of ECCTA’s Overall Financial Position

2016 2015 Change %
Assets: '
Current Assets $10,055 $6,384 $3,671 58%
Net Capital Assets $18.248 $20,696 ($2.448) -12%
Total Assets: $28,303 $27,080 $1,223 5%
Liabilities:
Current Liabllities $5,254 $3.058 $2,196 72%
Non-Current Liabilities $ 329 $ 285 $ 44 15%
Total Liabilities: $ 5,583 $ 3,343 $2,340 67%
Net Position: $22,720 $23,737 {$1,017) -4%

The Authority’s current assets increased substantially from FY15 to FY16 because there were more than
$3M in operating and capital funds receivable at year end FY16. This was due to two factors: The
Authority defayed submitting invoices for reimbursement for capital projects until year end in order to
be abie to close out capital grants at project completion. And because there were issues with the State
Controller’s office related to appropriation and ailocation of statewide transit operating funds such that
the Authority had over $2M in operating assistance receivable at year end. The issues were resolved a
few months after fiscal year end 2016 and the SCO released the FY16 operating funds.

The Authority also saw a 62% increase in liabilities at year end 2016 compared to FY15, The material
factor in this increase wasa $2.3M increase in accounts payable. This was a result of the Authority
accruing a return of over $2M to the LTF fund at Contra Costa County to be held in reserve for the
ECCTA.

The 4% decrease during FY16 in the Authority’s net position from the prior year is a result of the
combined effect of the items described above.

The Authority has maintained a significant reserve of unallocated state funds by not drawing all such
funds in the year they are generated when possible and allowing the excess to carryover as a reserve,
Those reserves were heavily depleted during the national economic downturn several years ago and are
slowly being rebuilt by the Authority. The accounts payable accrual mentioned above will be returned
to the reserve balance cutlined below.



ECCTA Year End L.TF Balances

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011 2010

TDA Funds $818 $817 $2,095 $3,162 $2,741 $4,133 $3,137
STA Funds ) 88 175 32 301 4 1,974
YE Balance: $818 $905 $2,270 $3,194 $3,042 $4,137 $5,111

Capital Activity:

The Authority expended $1.2M of available capital funds during FY16 on various projects:

Revenue Vehicles $ 0959
Communication & Information Systems 50
Other 82

_ Total $ 1,191

Revenue vehicles remain the major component of the Authority’s net capital assets and will do so going
forward.

ECCTA Net Capital Assets 2016

5118
1%

B Rev Vehicles
B Real Estate
B Equipment & Other




Long Term Debts:

The Authority has only one long term debt. Itis a provision for a limited — three year maximum - post
employment, health care benefit. The Authority implemented GASB 45 provisions in 2008.

Operating Activity:
Comparison to Budget
FY16 Actual FY16 Budget
Operating Revenues $ 3,603 3 3,507
Operating Expenses 5 19,955 $ 21,445
Non-Operating Revenues 3 16,352 $ 17,938
Prior Year Comparison
FY16 Actual FY15 Actual
Operating Revehues $ 3,603 $ 3,582
Operating Expenseas 5 19,955 $ 20,107
Non-Operating Revenues $ 16,352 3 16,025

Variance
$ 96
3 1,490
$ (1,580)
Difference
$ 21
$ 162
3 (173)

During FY16, the Authority budgeted for and operated about 210 thousand hours of revenue service.

While the Authority anticipated 3M passenger trips in FY16, the actual number provided fell 10% short

of the plan at 2.7M.



EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS BY SERVICE

FY16 Budget Annual Comparison
Jun-16 % A Jun-15 Jun-16 % A
DIAL-A-RIDE
PASSENGERS .
Tatal DAR Trips Provided 140,000 5% 133,769 131,917 ~1%
Average Weehday Ridership 506 4% 487 489 0%
Average Sat Ridership 164 T%]|. 163 118 -23%
Average Sun/Hol Ridership 66 B% 63 49 ~22%
Average Passengers/Hour fwkdys) 292 99 2.0 2.2 7%
" CUSTOMER SERVICE :
Ride Refusals/ Day 0.0 0% 0.0 0.0 0%
Cusiomer Complalnts 0.103% 0% 0.183% 0.114% 11%
On Time Performance 90% 3% 87% 85% -3%
MAINTENANCE :
Gallons of Fuet Consumed 144,619 4% 138,528 135,809 -2%
Miles Befween Preventable Accidents 200,000 23% 162,293 159,143 2%
Miles Between Road calls 100,000 0% 139,113 190,963 37%
COST RATIOS
Farebox Recovery Ratlo 10% 0% 10% 10% 0%
$/Gal Fuel $ 3.25 5%| $ 3091 % 2,58 -16%
Operating CostiPassanger $ 35.23 3%| $ 3418 % 34.41 1%
Cperating CostfRevenue Hour $ 71.80 3%| $ 6981 8% 7226 4%
Operating CostfRevenue Mile % 5.01 5% $ 5741 % 5.B5 2%
FIXED ROUTE
PASSENGERS
Total FR Trips Provided 2,826,000 1% 2,806,028 | 2,574,864 -8%
Average Weekday Ridership 9,949 2% 9,794 8,999 -8%
Average Sat Ridership 3,301 -3% 3,498 3,081 -12%
Average Sun/Hol Ridership 2,695 -3% 2,187 2,501 ~10%
Average PassengersiHour 19.3 1% 19.2 17.8 %
CUSTOMER SERVICE '
Customer Complaints 0.009% 0% 0.009% 0.009% 1%
On Time Performance 90% 2% 92% 92% 0%
MAINTENANCE :
Gallons of Fuel Consumed 594,981 1% 600,072 606,378 1%
Miles Between Preventable Accidents 100,000 2% 08,066 97,469 -1%
Miles Between Road calls 50,000 20% 41,553 27,690 -33%
COST RATIOS :
Farebox Recovery Rafio 18% 1% 18% 18% 0%
$/Gal Fuel $ 3.00 8%| $ 2771 % 1.98 29%
Operating Cost/Passanger % 579 5% $ 5541 % 5.98 8%
Operating Cost/Revenue Hour $ 11177 E%|$ 106356 |% 10633 0%
Operating Cost/Revenue Mile 3 8.07 6%| $ 762 % 7.49 2%




Material variances from budget during FY16 for the Authority were $412 thousand savings on salaries
and benefits due to leaving positions unfilled and turnover combined with $837 thousand in materials
" and supplies with more than half of that being fuel. There was another $132 thousand savings against
budget in purchased transpartation costs due to schedule adjustments during the year,

Economic Factars and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

Operating fund sources remain a concern for the Authority. More than 60% of the Authority’s operating
fund base involve retail sales taxes which ebb and flow with general economic conditions. And, there is
little opportunity for other sources of operations funding.

But the Authority has managed, through diligent menitoring of services and costs, combined with
judicious utilization of reserve funds, to weather the vagrancies of economic activity.

The Authority faces the common pressures of any business enterprise today; the rising costs of
employee benefits, particularly health care and worker’s compensation.

At $2M fuel is 1.0% of the Authority's annual budget. Fuel is at a historic low right now and energyis a
volatile market. This makes it difficult for the Authority to plan operations with certainty of this basic
need. The Authority is looking into fuel hedging as a way to better plan fuel costs and not have whip
sawing energy prices driving ECCTA’s planning from year to year.

Requests for Information

This financial report was created to provide citizens, taxpayers, as well as the Authority’s customers and
creditors with a general overview of the Authority’s finances. It is designed to demonstrate agency
accountability for appropriate use of public funds that the Authority receives. Any questions or requests
for additional information can be made to:

The Eastern Contra Casta Transit Authority
Attn: CFO

801 Wilbur Avenue

Antioch, CA 94590

(925) 754-6622

comment@eccta.org

Copies of this report are available online: http://www.trideltatransit.com/public.aspx




EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

JONE 30, 2016 AND 2015
2016 2015
ASSETS
Current Assets
Unrestricted assets:
Cash and equivalents (Note 3) $3,365,145 $3.187,470
Operating assistance receivable 2,272,057 425,283
Capital grants receivable 1,112,261 22,217
Accounis receivable 114,476 93,533
Maintenance inventories and supplies, at cost 742,700 681,935
Total unrestricted assets 7,606,639 4,410,438
Restricted cash and equivalents (Note 3):
PTMISEA reserves (Note 8) 1,784,567 1,604,912
CTS@GP reserves 190,016 190,003
LCTOP reserves 473,681 178,646
Total restricted assets 2,448 264 1,973,561
Total Current Assets 10,054,903 6,383,999
Non-Current Assets
Capital assets (Note 4):
Non-depreciable 2,456,985 2,456,985
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 15,790,678 18,238,675
Total Non-Current Assets 18,247,663 20,695,660
Total Assets 28,302,566 27,079,659
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable . 4,911,316 2,679,440
Accrued liabilities 342,411 378,639
. Total Current Liabilities 5,253,727 3,058,079
Non-Current Liabilities
Other Post Employment Benefit Obligation (Note 10C) 329,000 285,000
Total Liabilities 5,582,727 3,343,079
NET POSITION (Note 2G)
Net investment in capital assets 18,247,663 20,695,660
Restricted for:
PTMISEA projects . 1,784,567 1,604,912
CTSGP projects ' 190,016 190,003
LCTOP operations 473,681 178,646
Unrestricted 2,023,912 1,067,359
" Net Position $22,719,839 $23,736,580

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements



EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015

PROGRAM OPERATING REVENUES
Passenger fares
Other operating income

Total Program Operating Revenues

PROGRAM OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased transportation (Note 12)
Materials and supplies
Salaries and benefits
Services
Casualty and liability insurance
Uttilities
Other
Depreciation (Note 4)

Total Program Operating Expenses
PROGRAM OPERATING LOSS

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State grant revenues
Local grant revenues
Non-transportation revenues
Federal Grant Revenues
Gain (Loss) on sale of capital asset

Net Non-Operating Revenues, Before
Capital Contributions {Grants)

Capital Contributions (Grants)

Net Non-Operating Revenues and Capital
Contributions

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR
NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR

2016 2015
$3,273,431 $3,246,672
330,066 335,853
3,603,497 3,582,525
11,555,396 11,310,882
2,738,513 3,175,222
3,822,009 3,784,585
759,752 796,231
468,343 412,446
263,008 246,878
348,429 380,803
2,731,419 3,197,098
22,686,959 23,304,145
(19,083 ,462) (19,721,620)
10,811,521 12,526,651
4,151,192 3,993,516
5,435 5,139
1,383,895
(784)
16,352,043 16,524,522
1,714,678 1,658,605
18,066,721 18,183,127
(1,016,741) (1,538,493)
23,736,580 25,275,073
$22,719,839 $23,736,580

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements
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BEASTERN CONTRA. COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY

STATEMENTS OF CASHFLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2016 AND 2015

CASH FLLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from passenger fares
Cash received from operations - other
Cash payments for purchased transportation
Payments to and on behalf of employees
Payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net cash provided (used) by operating activilies

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income received

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Federal grants and reimbursement ’
State operating grants
Local grants

Net cash provided by noncapital and financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Capital contributions received
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Purchase of capital assets

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related firancing activities
NET CASH FLOWS
CASH AND INVESTMENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND INVESTMENTS AT END OF YEAR

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO NET CASH
PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating loss
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:
Other receivables
Maintenance inventories and supplies
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Other post employment benefit obligation

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

2016 2015
$3,252,488 $3,296,071
330,066 335,853
(11,555,396) (11,310,882)
(3,778,009) (3,749,585)
(2,443 ,252) (4,585,500)
(14,194,103) (16,014,043)
5435 5,139
1,383,895
9,721,477 12,651,606
2,304,418 3,947,352
13,409,790 16,598,958
1,239,975 160,788
17,887
(283 ,422) (721,395)
956,553 (542,720)
177,675 47,334
3,187,470 3,140,136
$3,365,145 $3,187,470
($19,083,462) ($19,721,620)
2,731,419 3,197,098
(20,943) 49,399
(60,765) 1,010
2,231,876 445,731
(36.228) (20,661)
44,000 35,000
($14,154,103) ($16,014,043)

See accompenying notes to basic financial statements
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE 1- GENERAL

The Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority (Authority), also known as Tri Delta Transit, was
created August 3, 1976 under a joint exercise of powers agreement between the cities of Antioch,
Pittsburg, Brentwood, and Contra Costa County, for the purpose of meeting the public
transportation needs in Eastern Contra Costa County. The Authority is governed by a board of
Directors composed of representatives of the member jurisdictions. The joint exercise of powers
agreement was amended on April 26, 2000 to include the recently incorporated City of Oakley.

The Authority’s reporting entity includes all activities of the Authority.

[NOTE 2- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES |

The following is a summary of significant accounting policies of the Authority, which confoﬁn

with generally accepted accounting principles applicable to governments in the United States of
America.

A Enterprise Fund Accounting

The Authority is accounted for as an enterprise fund. This fund is a set of self-balancing accounts,
which comprise its assets and deferred outflows, liabilities and deferred inflows, net position,
revenues and expenses.

B. Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenses are recognized. The Authority is
accounted for using the accrual basis of accounting, under which revenues are recognized when
they are earned and expenses are recognized when they are incurred.

Non-exchange transactions, in which the Authority gives or receives value without directly
receiving or giving equal value in exchange, include taxes, grants, entitlements, and donations.
On an accrual basis, revenne from grants, entitlements, and donations is recognized in the fiscal
year in which all eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

C. Basis of Presentation
The Authority’s Basic Financial Statements are prepared in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America. The Government Accounting Standards Board

is the acknowledged standard setting body for establishing accounting and financial reporting
standards followed by governmental entities in the U.S.A.
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) I

Proprietary funds distingnish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in conmection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operation. The principal operating
revenues of the Authority are charges to customers for farcbox revenues. The Authority’s
operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with
the principal activity of the Authority. Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on assets. All revenues and expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

D. Cash Equivalents

The Authority considers all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less
when purchased to be cash equivalents.

E. Risk Management

The Authority Tequires its operations contractor, First Transit, Inc., to provide general liability
coverage. First Transit provides insurance with primary coverage of $20,000,000 in aggregate. In
addition, the Authority is insured for premises and operational bodily injury and property damage
up to a limit of $12,100,000, with a deductible of $10,000.

F Compensated Absences

Full-time permanent employees are granted personal time off (PTO) benefits in varying amounts to
specified maximums, depending on their tenure with the Authority. PTO accrues to employees to
specified maximums after six months of service. The estimated current portion of the liability for
PTO benefits is recorded as an expenditure with a corresponding liability.

G Net Position
Net Position is the excess of all the Authority’s assets and deferred outflows over all its liabilities
and deferred inflows. Net Position are divided into three captions and apply only to Net Position as

described below:

Net Investment in Capital Assets describes the portion of Net Position which is represented by the
current net book value of the Authority’s capital assets.

Restricted describes the portion of Net Position which is restricted as to use by the ferms and
conditions of agreements with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other
restrictions which the Authority cannot unilaterally alter. The Authority’s Restricted Net Position
is for unexpended funds received from PTMISEA, CTSGP and LCTOP.

Unresiricted describes the portion of Net Position which is not restricted to use.

14



EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORETY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended Jane 30, 2016 and 2015

|NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) _|

H

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial stafements in conformity with gemerally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of agsets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the
date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Deferred Inflow/Cutflow of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, Tepresents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a fature
period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until
then.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future
period(s) and so will nof be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

Fair Value Measuremenis

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The
Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles. The fair value hierarchy categorizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value into three levels based on the extent to which
inputs nsed in measuring fair value are observable in the market.

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

Level 2 inputs are inputs — other than quoted prices included within level 1 — that are
observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for an asset or liability.
If the fair value of an asset or liability is measured using inputs from more than one level of the

fair value hierarchy, the measurement is considered to be based on the lowest priority level input
{hat is significant to the entire measurement.
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Inded June 30, 2016 and 2015

[NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) I

X

New Accounting Pronouncements
The Authority has implemented the requirements of the following GASB Pronouncements:

GASB Statement No. 72 — Fair Value Measurement and Application. The intention of this
Statement is to enhance the comparability of financial statements among governments by
requiring measurement of certain assets and liabilities at fair value using a consistent and more
detailed definition of fair value and accepted valuation techniques. It also enhances fair value
application guidance and related disclosures. This statement required modifications to the notes
to financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 76 - The Hierarchy of Generally Accepted Accounting Principles for State
and Local Governments. The objective of this Statement is to identify—in the context of the
current governmental financial reporting environment—the hierarchy of generally accepted
acconnting principles (GAAP). The “GAAP hicrarchy” consists of the sources of accounting
principles used to prepare financial statements of state and local governmental entities in
conformity with GAAP and the framework for selecting those principles. This Statement reduces
the GAAP hLierarchy to two categories of authoritative GAAP and addresses the use of
authoritative and nonauthoritative literature in the event that the accounting treatment for a
transaction or other event is not specified within a source of authoritative GAAP. This Statement
had no impact on the Authority’s financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 79 — Certain External Investment Pools and Pool Participanis. The
objective of this Statement is to address for certain external investment pool and their participants
the accounting and financial reporting implications that result from changes in the regulatory
provisions referenced by previous accounting and financial reporting standards. This statement is
effective for the periods beginning after December 15, 2015, or the 20152016 fiscal year. This
Statement had no impact on the Authority’s financial statements.
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
¥or The Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS J

California Law requires banks and savings and loan institutions to pledge government securities
with a market vatue of 110% of the Authority’s cash on deposit, or first trust deed mortgage notes
with a market value of 150% of the deposit, as collateral for these deposits. Under California
Law this collateral is held in a separate investment pool by another institution in the Authority’s
name and places the Authority ahead of general creditors of the institution.

A Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Authority’s unrestricted cash consists of time and demand deposits and petty cash held at the
Anthority’s administrative office.

The Authority’s restricted assets, which consist of certificates of deposit with Bank of Agriculture
and Commerce, are carried at fair value, as required by generally accepted accounting principles.
The Authority adjusts the carrying value of its investments to reflect their fair value at each fiscal
year end, and it includes the effecis of these adjustments in income for that fiscal year.

Cash and cash equivalents consisted of the following as of June 30:

2016 2015
Unrestricted cash:
Deposits in financial institutions $3,364,444 $3,186,920
Cash on hand ai Authority 701 550
Total unrestricted cash and equivalents 3,365,145 3,187,470
Restricted - certificates of deposit:
PITMISEA reserve 1,784,567 1,604,912
CISGP reserve - ' 190,016 190,003
LCTOP reserve 473,681 178,646
Total restricted cash and equivalenis 2448264 1,973,561
Total Cash and Equivalents $5,813,409 $5,161,031

B. . Fair Value Hierarchy

The Authority categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established
by generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used
to measure fair value of the assets. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in an active market for
identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are
significant unobservable inputs.

The Autherity only has investments in Money Market accounts of $3,056,976 and Certificates of
Deposit of $2,448,264, which are exempt from fair market value measurements.
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE 3 - CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (Continued) |

C PTMISEA Reserve

The Public Transportation, Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account
(PTMISEA) is cne of the programs included in Proposition 1B, the Highway Safety, Traffic
Reduction, Air Quality and Port Security Bond Act, passed by voters in November 2006 (see
Note 8). The Authority is applying these funds to eligible capital expenditures for bus
replacements.

D. CTSGP Reserve

The California Transit Security Grant Program (CTSGP) California Transit Assistance Fund is
another program included in Proposition 1B, the Highway Safety, Traffic Reduction, Air Quality
and Port Security Bond Act, passed by voters in November 2006. The Authority is applying
these funds fo eligible capital expenditures for interoperable communications and physical
security enhancement equipment. -

E. LCTOP Operations

The Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP) is one of several programs that are part of -
the Transit, Affordable Tousing, and Sustainable Communities Program established by the
California Legislature in 2015 by Senate Bill 862. The LCTOP was created to provide operating
and capital assistance for transit agencies to reduce greenhousc gas emission and improve
mobility, with a priority on serving disadvantaged communities. LCTOP was passed and adopted
by the Authority in January 2016. The Authority is applying these funds to enhance service on
Route 201 (Concard, CA).

[NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS |

Capital assets of the Authority consist of land, tremsit and service vebicles, buildings and
improvements, and equipment. Capital assets arc recorded at cost and depreciated over their
estimated useful lives. The Authority’s policy is to capitalize all assets when costs exceed $5,000.

Depreciation of capital assets in service is provided using the straight line method which means the
cost of the asset is divided by its expected useful life in years and the resul is charged to expense
each year until the asset is fully depreciated. The Authority has assigned the useful lives as follows:

Building and improvements 5-30 years
Transit vehicles 4-14 years
Shop, office and other equipment 5-10 years
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE 4 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) |

A. Capital Asset Activity

Capital assets activity during fiscal year ended June 30, 2016 is as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2015 Additions June 30, 2016
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land ' $2,456,985 $2,456,985
Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,456,985 2,456,985
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvemsnts 12,998,495 $189.050 13,187,545
Transit vehicles 28,931,437 28,570 28,960,007
Equipment 3,672,855 65,802 3,738,657
Total capital assets being depreciated 45,602,787 283,422 45,886,209
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements ) 7,084,650 517,915 7,602,565
Transit vehicles 16,675,898 2,123,503 18,799,401
Equipment 3,603,564 90,001 3,693,565
Total accumnlated depreciation , 27,364,112 2,731,419 30,095,531
Total depreciable assets 18,238,675 (2,447,997 15,790,678
Capital assets, net $20,695,660 ($2,447,997) $18,247,663
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30,2016 and 2015

[NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) |

Capital assets activity during fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 was as follows:

Balance Balance
June 30, 2014 Additions Retirements June 30, 2015

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land $2,456,985 $2,456,985
Total capital assets not being depreciated 2,456,985 2,456,985
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements 12,715,138 283,357 12,998,495
Transit vehicles 28,827,388 355,002 ($250,953) 28,931,437
Equipment 3,606,210 83,036 (16,391} 3,672,855
Total capital assets being depreciated 45,14_8,736 721,395 (267,344) 45,602,787
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements 6,509,093 575,557 7,084,650
Transit vehicles 14,842,073 2,067,747 (233,922) 16,675,898
Equipment 3,064,521 553,794 {14,751) 3,603,564
Total accumulated depreciation 24,415,687 3,197,098 {248,673) 27,364,112
Total depreciable assets 20,733,049 (2,475,703) (18,671) 18,238,675
Capital assets, net $23,190,034 ($2,475,703) ($18,671) $20,695,660
B. Capital Contributions

The Authority has grant contracts with the U.S. Department of Transportation through the Federal
Transit Administration for certain capital improvements. Federal Transit Administration funds
are used to replace and improve the Authority’s buses and transit facilities. The Authority also
has contracts under the Transportation Development Act of 1971 (TDA) and State Transit
Assistance (STA) funds, which are used to match Federal Transit Administration grants or to
fund transit improvement projects. Capital funding provided under government grants is
considered earned as the allowable expenditures are incurred. :

Grants for capital assets acquisition and facility development and rehabilitation are reported in the

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position, after non-operating revenues and
expenses as capital contributions.
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORYITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 3¢, 2016 and 2015

[NOTE 5-- OPERATING GRANTS |

The Authority records operating assistance grants as revenue when eamed.
A.  TDA and STA Operating Assistance

The Authority receives allocations of local transportation funds pursuant to the Transportation
Development Act of 1971 and State Transit Assistance (STA) funds. These funds are generated
within Contra Costa County and are aliocated based on annual claims filed by the Authority and
approved by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC). Generally, the maximum anmual
TDA assistance the Authority can receive is limited to its actual operating costs (excluding
depreciation) less fare revenues received and other local operating assistance (including interest
income).

For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the maximum TDA operating assistance eligibility
was $10,490,522 and $11,180,477, respectively. During the year ended June 30, 2016, the TDA
operating funds received was $10,464,556 resulting in an underpayment by MTC of $25,966. The
Authority increased the TDA Operating Receivable at June 30, 2016 in the amount of the deficit
{see Note 9).

B.  Infer Operator Agreements

The Authority receives funding through an arrangement with Bay Area Rapid Transit (BART) for
operating assistance applied to certain "feeder bus" services to the Pittsburg/Bay Point BART
station. The Authority took over and incorporated such services from BART in 1997 (as detailed in
the schedule below).

C.  Regional Measure 2 Funds

On March 2, 2004, voters passed Regional Measure 2 (RM2), rajsing the toll on the seven State-
owned toll bridges in the San Francisco Bay Area by $1.00. This extra dollar js to fund various
transportation prejects within the region that have been determined to reduce congestion or to make
improvements to travel in the toll bridge corridors, as identified in SB 916 (Chapter 715, Statutes of
2004). Specifically, RM2 establishes the Regional Traffic Relief Plan and identifies specific transit
operating assistance and capital projects and programs eligible to receive RM2 fonding. ‘The Bay
Area Toll Authority (BATA) is responsible for the collection of the bridge tolls and MTC is
responsible for administering the RM2 Program. The Authority is an eligible recipient for RM2
funds and received $531,835 and $531,835 in RM2 funding during fiscal years ended June 30, 2016
and 2015, respectively. The Authority utilized the RM2 funds as operating assistance on a specific,
express bus route per the program's requirements.
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FASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2013

[NOTE 5.- OPERATING GRANTS (Continued) |

Operating assistance for the years ended June 30 are summarized as follows:

_ 2016 2015

Federal Transit Administration $1,383,895
Transportation Development Act 8,092,592 $10,386,823
State Transit Assistance 2,659,318 1,639,828
Inter-operator agreements (BART) 2,404,790 2,267,902
Measure J 1,214,567 1,193,779
Regional Measure 2 531,835 531,835
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOF) 59,611

Total $16,346,608 $16,520,167

[NOTE 6- CAPITAL GRANTS _|

The Authority has received grants from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) and grants of
local transportation funds pursuant to the Transportation Development Act of 1971 (TDA) for the
purchase of buses, facility improvements, furniture and fixtures, and supporting equipment.

Expenditures of capital grant funds are allocated based on annnal claims filed by the Authority and
approved by the MTC. The Authority's management believes that the remaining grants available
will be approved in full. These grants (excluding Measure D), less the related amortization, are
included in capital contributions.

The Authority's capital contributions for the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015
U.S. Department of Transportation grant awards $1,820,444 $154,65 6
Less: funds used for operating costs {1,383,895)
' Sub-total: 436,549 154,656
State prants 164,742 31,954
Other 1,039,355 59,338
Total Capital Contributions $1,640,646° $245.948

[NOTE 7 - MEASUREJ |

In November 2004, Contra Costa County voters approved Measure J which provided for the
continuation of a County half-cent transportation sales tax for 25 more years beyond the original
expiration date of 2009 (Measure C). Measure J funding is administered by the Contra Costa
Transportation Authority (CCTA). The Authority records Contra Costa County Measure [ grants
for operations and for capital projects as revenue and capital contributions, respectively, as received.

The Authority is an eligible recipient of Measure J funds and received $1,344,177 and $1,314,677
in Measure J operating assistance during fiscal years ended June 30, 2016 and 20135, respectively, of
which $1,214,567 and $1,193,779, respectively, were applied to specific fixed route and para-
transit bus services per CCTA's approved program. The remaining amount of $19,610 and $120,898
of Measure J funds for 2016 and 2015, respectively, were "passed through" to the Central Contra
Costa Transit Authority (CCCTA) according to an inter-operator agreement that all three agencies
entered into to provide Conntywide express bus services. -
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIY AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE 8 — PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION MODERNIZATION IMPROVEMENT AND SERVICE
ENHANCEMENT ACCOUNT

The Public Transportation, Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account
(PTMISEA) is one of the programs included in Proposition 1B, the Highway Safety, Traffic
Reduction, Air Quality and Port Security Bond Act, passed by voters in November 2006. During
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, the Authority applied for and received $1,802,885 for the
procurement of California Air Resource Board (CARB) compliant diesel buses. During the year
ended June 30, 2012, the Authority applied for and received $2,922,016. During the year ended
June 30, 2014, the Authority received $327,019. During the year ended June 30, 2015, the
Authority received $1,277,391. During the year ended June 30, 2016, the Axrthority received
$178,754.

The activity during the last five fiscal years was as follows:

2016 2015 2014
PTMISEA beginning balance 31,604,912 $333,372 $31,909
PTMISEA Funds Received 178,754 1,277,391 327,019
Tnterest Barned 901 767 265
Total Revenues 1,784,567 1,611,530 359,193
Expenditures incurred:
Buses
Sheltexs : (6,618) {25,821)
Total Expenditures (6,618) (25,821)
Unexpended funds at year end $1,784,567 $1,604,912 $333,372
2013 2012
PTMISEA beginning balance © $2,953,894 $924,964
PTMISEA Funds Received 2,922,016
Interest Earned 13,011 1,680
Total Revennes 2,967,803 3,848,660
Fxpenditures incurred:
Buses (2,935,896) (894,766)
Shelters )
Total Expenditures (2,935,896) (894,766)
Unexpended funds at year end $31,909 $2,953,894
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30,2016 and 2015

[NOTE 5 TDA RECEIVABLE/PAYABLE |

The Authority applies for TDA funds for operating purposes prior to the start of each fiscal year. The
application is based on the Authority's annual budget and thus contains an estimate of the Authority's
annual operating expenditures and revenues during the next fiscal year. After completion of the
annual audit whereby any unapplied funds or funding shortfalls are determined, the Authority either
returns TDA funds in excess of those used during the fiscal year or applies for additional TDA
funding for the prior fiscal year to make up the shortfall.

A TDA Receivable represents the deficit of TDA operations granis received by the Authority over
the allowed expenditures; any deficit amounts are payable to the Authority. A TDA Payable
represents the surplus of TDA operations granfs received by the Authority over the allowed
expenditures. Such surpluses must be returned to the County Local Transportation Fund, The
amount of TDA payable or receivable at year end is a provision that the Authority makes to request
or return such TDA funds. At the end of fiscal year ended Tune 30, 2016, the Authority was still
owed from MIC the amount of $25,966 in TDA Operating Funds revenues. As a result, the
Authority increased its TDA Operating receivable by the amount of the deficit.

For the years ended June 30, 2016 and 2015, the maximum TDA. operating assistance eligible was
$10,490,522 and $11,180,477, respectively. The actual TDA operating funds received for the years
ended Jupe 30, 2016 and 2015 were $10,464,556 and $10,857377 respectively. The TDA
Receivable for the years ended Jume 2016 and 2015, respectively, were $25,966 and $323,100,
respectively, and were calculated as follows:

2016 2013
TDA operating assistance allowable $10,490,522 $11,180,477
Actual TDA operating assistance received (10,464,556) (10,857,377)

Receivable $25,966 $323,100

[NOTE 10 - EMPLOYEE RETTREMENT PLANS |

The Authority offers two retirement plans - a 401(a) and a 457(b) plan. The plans are optional. The
Authority also offers Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB).

A. Employees’ Retirement Plan

The Authority offers a 401(a) defined contribution pension plan, administered by the Financial
Decision gronp, through Charles Schwab. All full-time employees are eligible for this voluntary
program upon successful completion of his or her probation. In order to participate in this voluntary
program, an employee must participate in the 457(b) deferred compensation plan (see note 10B), and
contribute & minimum of 4% of his or her gross salary, up to 2 maximum of 25%, or the federally
allowed maximum amount of his or her gross compensation, whichever is Jess.
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30,2016 and 2015

NOTE 10~ EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (Continued) |

The Authority makes contributions to the 401(a) plan for each participant depending on the
participant’s years of service with the Authority as follows:

Less than 10 years 12% of gross salary
10-20 years 13% of gross salary
20-30 years 14% of gross salary
More than 30 years 15% of gross salary

Any changes to the plan and/or contribution requirements must be approved by the Authority’s
Board of Directors. During fiscal year ended June 30, 2016, the Authority contributed $321,797 to
the 401(a) plan on behalf of its participants.

B, Deferred Compensation Plan

The Authonty employees may defer a portion of their compensation under an Authority sponsored
Deferred Compensation Plan, administered by ICMA, created in accordance with Internal Revenue
Code Section 457, Under this plan, participants are not taxed on the deferred portion of their
compensation wntil distributed to them; distributions may be made only at termination, retirement,
death or in an emergency as defined by the Plan.

The laws goveming deferred compensation plan assefs require plan assets to be held by a Trust for
the exclusive benefit of plan participants and their bencficiaries. Sinece the assefs held under these
plans are not the Authority’s property and are not subject to Authority control, they have been
excluded from these financial statements.

C Other Post Employment Benefits (OPEB)

The Authority provides postretirement health care benefits to fuil time administrative employees who
retire directly from the Authority after attaining the age of 62 with at least 20 years of service. As of
Tune 30, 2016, there were no participants receiving these health care benefits. The Authority does
pot anticipate paying any OPEB until fiscal year ending June 30, 2017

The Aunthority will pay the entire COBRA Kaiser Health Savings Account (HSA) plan premium for
the retired employee and their eligible dependents until the employee reaches age 65, at which time
they will qualify for Medicare. The Auvthority will pay the equivalent of the Kaiser HSA plan
premium towards another health insurance policy selected by the employee in place of this plan.

Under the provisions of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement Number 45,
Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than
Pensions, the Authority has elected to use an alternative method in caleulating its OPEB liability,
which is recorded as a noncwrrent liability in the Statement of Net Position. The Authority is on a
pay-as-you-go funding policy, and uses the following assumptions in calculating the liability on an
annual bagis: current COBRA Kaiser HSA rate, 10% anoual inflation factor, and .5% investment rate
of return.
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EASTERN CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2016 and 2015

NOTE 11 - CONTINGENT LIABILITIES |

The Authority is subject to litigation arising in the normal course of business. In the opim'bn of the
Authority’s legal counsel there is no pending litigation, which is likely to have a material adverse
effect on the financial position of the Authority.

The Authority participates in Federal and State grant programs. These programs have been audited
by the Authority’s independent auditors in accordance with the provisions of the Federal Single
Audit Act, as amended, and applicable State requirements. No cost disallowances were proposed as
a result of these audits; howsver, these programs are still subject to further examination by the
grantors and the amount, if any, of expenses which may be disallowed by the granting agencies
cannot be determined at this time. The Anthority expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

On Febrary 4, 2016, the Authority entered into an agreement with California Energy Resources
Conservation and Development Commission for $1,355,000, with a one percent (1% per annum)
interestrate. The project consists of installing roof and parking structures mounted with
photovoltaic (PV) panels at the Fast Contra Costa Transit Authority main office, located in Antioch,
California. Principal and inferest payments ate payable semiannually in the amount of $39,648 with
the first repayment due on December 22, 2017 and final installment due on June 22, 2036, The
Authority has not received the loan amount as of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.

NOTE 12 - MAJOR CONTRACTOR

The Authority has an agreement dated July 30, 2011 with First Transit, Inc., a private transit firm, to
provide transportation management and operations services on behalf of the Authority through June
30, 2016. On May 2, 2016, the contract was extended through June 30, 2020. Expenses recorded
under this contract amounted to $11,555,396 and $11,310,882 for fiscal years ended June 30, 2016
and 2015, respectively, and are recorded as purchased transportation,
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- INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT AND
OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN :
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE,
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Members (;f the Board of Directors of
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Antioch, California

We have aundited, in accordance with the anditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
Arerica and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statement of the Eastern Contra
Costa Transit Authority (Authority), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2016, and the related notes to
the financial statements, and have issued our repott thereon dated November 2.8, 2016,

Internal Control Over Fi inancial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Authority's internal
control over financial reporting (intexnal control) to determine the andit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion cn the effectiveness of Aunthority’s internal control.

" A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow

management or employees, in the nofmal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
of deficiencies, in infernal control, such that there is a reasonable possibilify that a material misstatement
of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, ot a combination of deficiencies, in internal confrol that is less
severe than a material weakness, vet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
may exist that have not been identified.

T 826,930.0902

F 925,930.0135

B maze@mazeassociates,.com
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Accountancy Corporation -
3478 Busklrk Avenue, Sulte 215 27
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority's financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncomplance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts, Qur procedures included the applicable audit procedures
contained in §6667 of Title 21 of Califomia Code of Regulations and tests of compliance with the
applicable provisions of the Transportation Development Act and the allocation instructions and
resolutions of the Metropolitan Transportation Commission. However, providing an opition o
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express
such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are
required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Authority’s Response to Findings

The Authority’s response to the findings identified in our audit are described in our separately issned
Memorandum on Internal Control dated November 28, 2016, which is an integral part of our audits and
should be read in conjunction with this report. The Authority’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the andit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal conirol and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Pleasant Hill, California
November 28, 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE WITH THF RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION MODERNIZATION
IMPROVEMENT AND SERVICE ENHANCEMENT ACCOUNT (PTMISEA)

Honorable Members of the Board of Directors of the
Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority
Antioch, California

We have andited the statement of revenues and expenditures of the Eastern Contra Costa Transit
Authority Public Transportation Modernizafion, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account
Projects, a program of the Eastern Contra Costa Transit Authority, California, (the Authority) in
accordance with general accepted auditing standards in the United States of America as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2016, and have issued our report thereon dated November 28, 2016,

In connection with our audit, we have read and performed the applicable audit procedures contained in
the Public Transportation Modernization, Improvement and Service Enhancement Account Guideline
(Guideline) adopted by the California of Department of Transportation.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered Authority's internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the andit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of Aunthority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of Aunthority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or

detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination
" of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement
of the Authority’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, vet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses.
may exist that have not been identified.
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we perfonmed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Authority’s Response to Findings

The Authority’s response to-the findings identified in our audit are described in our separafely issued
Memorandum on Internal Control dated November 28, 2016, which is an integral part of our andits and
should be read in conjunction with this report. The Authority’s response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial staternents and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Authority’s
internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the Authority’s internal control and compliance.
Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

g b i

Pleagant Hill, California
November 28, 2016
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